














Page 1

snovoa
Typewritten Text
2A

snovoa
Typewritten Text
2A



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



1. Opening     

A. Call to Order 
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:03 P.M. 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Dietch, Vice Mayor Karukin, Commissioner Kligman, Commissioner Olchyk 
and Commissioner Graubart.   

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chief David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Commissioner Olchyk spoke about the amount of presentations on the agenda and 
stated that she would like to limit the presentation to be one per department.  
Commissioner Graubart suggested Commissioner Olchyk to bring it back as a 
discussion item. 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to be allowed to make some remarks about 
Code Enforcement issues after Good and Welfare.  Commissioner Graubart made a 
motion to approve.  The motion received a second from Vice Mayor Karukin and all 
voted in favor. 
Commissioner Kligman also requested to present Item 1N “Recognition of Lifeguards 
Erik Fernandez and Jose Espinoza”. 
Town Manager Michael P. Crotty requested to linked item 4A with item 5A and 5B.  
He also requested a motion to defer agenda item 4B2.  Commissioner Kligman made 
a motion to defer item 4B2.  The motion received a second from Commissioner 
Graubart and all voted in favor. 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Mayor Dietch announced the upcoming community events which are also available 
on the town website. 
Commissioner Graubart announced that he would be unavailable to be present at the 
ribbon cutting tomorrow.  

G. Presentation from State Representative Joe Gibbons - Mayor Daniel Dietch 
State Representative Joe Gibbons was unable to attend the meeting. 
 
 

Page 13

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3A

snovoa
Typewritten Text



H. Presentation from Town’s Lobbyist Fausto Gomez – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
After the presentation awards, Town Lobbyist Fausto Gomez provided the Town 
Commission with a verbal report on the recently completed session.  Some of the 
highlighted issues included recovery money from communication tax; water projects; 
Transportation Dept.; pension reform; firearms; property insurance; beach restoration; 
and next year’s agenda items.  Both Mayor Dietch and Vice Mayor Karukin thanked 
Mr. Gomez for his services. 

I. Outstanding Student Award to Gabriel Coto– Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Commissioner Olchyk presented Gabriel Coto with the Outstanding Student Award 
Scholarship. 
She encouraged everyone in the Community to apply for the scholarship next year. 

J. Exemplary Student Award to Lawrence “Larry” Frishberg – Commissioner Joe 
Graubart  
Commissioner Graubart presented Lawrence “Larry” Frishberg with the Exemplary 
Student Award. 

K. Presentation of Employee of the Quarter to Hector Rodriguez, Harold Lacroix 
and Kenny Chaviano – Randy Stokes, Capital Improvements Project Manager 

L. Presentation to Priscilla Krutules and Marisol Rodriguez for 10 Years of Service 
to the Town of Surfside – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager 
Town Manager Michael P. Crotty presented Priscilla Krutules and Marisol Rodriguez 
with a Certificate of Appreciation for their 10 Years of Service to the Town of 
Surfside. 

M. Presentation to Officer Loxeley Arch III for 20 Years of Service to the Town of 
Surfside – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager 
Town Manager Michael P. Crotty presented Officer Loxeley Arch III with a 
Certificate of Appreciation for his 20 Years of Service to the Town of Surfside. 

N. Recognition of Lifeguards Erik Fernandez and Jose Espinoza – Tim Milian, 
Parks and Recreation Director 
Commissioner Olchyk and Jackie Villagran presented Erik Fernandez and Jose 
Espinosa with the Recognition of Lifeguards award.  Commissioner Olchyk 
personally thanked Tim Milian and his hands on team for their dedication, 
professionalism and service to the community and related a life saving incident 
involving her children at the community pool. 

O. Presentation of the Officer of the Month of April to Officer Alberto Knight – 
David Allen, Chief of Police 
Chief of Police David Allen presented Officer Alberto Knight with the Officer of the 
Month of April award. 

P. Presentation of the Civilian of the Month of April to Parking Officer Alain 
Acosta – David Allen, Chief of Police 
Chief of Police David Allen presented Parking Officer Alain Acosta with the Civilian 
of the Month of April award. 

Q. Presentation of the Officer of the Month of May to Sgt. Jay Matelis, Officer John 
Gentile and Officer Alberto Knight – David Allen, Chief of Police  
Chief of Police David Allen presented Sgt. Jay Matelis, Officer John Gentile and 
Officer Alberto Knight with the Officer of the Month of May award. 

Page 14



R. Presentation of the Officer of the Month of June to Officer Don McGavern and 
Officer Dianna Hernandez – David Allen, Chief of Police 
Chief David Allen presented Officer Don McGavern and Officer Dianna Hernandez 
with the Officer of the Month of June award. 
Commissioner Kligman stated that she is very happy that Sgt. Matelis and Officer 
Hernandez take the time to really know their Community and congratulated the 
officers for their services to the Town. 
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None) 
 

3. Consent Agenda (Set for approximately 7:30 p.m.) 
Commissioner Graubart pulled item 4, page12; item 6, page 31; item 10, page 33; item 3, 
page 36; item 1, page 38 and item 3E. 

 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda minus the pulled 
items.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor 
 
A. Minutes – June 11, 2013 Regular Commission Meeting Minutes  
B. Budget to Actual Summary as of April 30, 2013 – Donald Nelson, Finance Director  

            *C. Town Manager’s Report (Points of Light) – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  
            *D. Town Attorney’s Report – Linda Miller, Interim Town Attorney  

       *E.  Projects Progress Report – Calvin, Giordano and Associates, Inc.  
 Commissioner Graubart   

F.  Committee Reports – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager (Note: Vice Mayor Karukin has 
requested that Committee minutes appear on the Consent Agenda.  The most recent approved 
minutes have been included)  

 
   -  May 29, 2013 DVAC Meeting Minutes 
   -  June 6, 2013 DVAC Meeting Minutes 
  
G.  Expenditure of Forfeiture Funds for the Purchase of Special Equipment – 

David Allen, Chief of Police  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2012/2013 
POLICE CONFISCATION FUND EXPENDITURE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000) FROM THE FORFEITURE FUND 
TO PURCHASE THREE (3) ADDITIONAL BICYCLES FOR THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Approved on consent 

 
H.  Biscayne Restoration Resolution – Mayor Daniel Dietch  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) SUPPORTING THE BISCAYNE BAY 

Page 15



COALITION OF ITS PROTECTION FOR THE HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY RESIDENTS AND THE 
IMPROVEMENT OF OUR TOURISM ECONOMY; SUPPORTING STATE 
RULE ADOPTION; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Approved on consent 
 

Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve the pulled items from the consent 
agenda.  The motion received a second from Vice Mayor Karukin and all voted in 
favor. 
 

 
4. Ordinances  

(Set for approximately __8:30___ p.m.)   (Note:  Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15) 

A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing) 

1. Reformed Mark Wandall Traffic Safety Act – David Allen, Chief of 
Police (TIME CERTAIN 8:30 PM)  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 74 “TRAFFIC AND 
VEHICLES”, ARTICLE III “DANGEROUS INTERSECTION SAFETY” 
AND SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 74-72 “USE OF IMAGE 
CAPTURE TECHNOLOGIES", SECTION 74-76 “IMPLEMENTATION 
OF GENERAL LAW”, AND SECTION 74-77 “ISSUANCE OF NOTICE; 
REVIEW OF RECORDED IMAGES” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES  IMPLEMENTING CHAPTER 2013-__, LAWS 
OF FLORIDA;  PROVIDING FOR LOCAL HEARING OFFICERS 
CONSISTENT WITH GENERAL LAW; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION 
IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.  
Chief of Police David Allen presented the item to the Town Commission.  Chief 
Allen gave insight to the advantages of the town having its own Special 
Magistrate Court to handle traffic violations and said it would be cost efficient.  
Chief Allen also indicated the use of red cameras would result in a net profit for 
the town.  Commissioner Graubart made a motion to approve.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk. 
 

Page 16



Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, Mayor Dietch 
closed the public hearing. 
 
The motion carried 5-0. 

 
 

 (Set for approximately __9:00___ p.m.) (Note:  Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15) 

B. First Reading Ordinances 
 
1. Deferred Retirement Option Plan (“DROP”) – Yamileth Slate-McCloud, 

Human Resources Director and Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager (TIME 
CERTAIN 8:00 PM)  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE; RELATING TO THE RETIREMENT PLAN FOR 
EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE; AMENDING 
SECTION 2-193 OF THE CODE TO PERMIT ALL MEMBERS 
ELIGIBLE FOR NORMAL RETIREMENT TO PARTICIPATE IN 
THE DROP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Pension Attorney Robert Kelausner presented the item to the Town 
Commission. 
Commissioner Kligman asked for a definition of the Drop Program in 
laymen terms.  Attorney Kelausner explained that a senior employee 
eligible for retirement will have the option to continue their employment 
without accruing additional retirement benefits (up to five years).  Attorney 
Kelausner indicated the plan poses to be beneficial to both the employee 
and the Town.  Also, that Surfside has a very healthy pension plan in place.  
Commissioner Kligman asked if participants in the program are guaranteed 
a rate of return and Attorney Kelausner indicated that the rate of return is 
not guaranteed but variable.  After some discussion Commissioner Kligman 
made a motion to accept.  Commissioner Graubart seconded the motion.  
All voted in favor. 

   
2. Planning & Zoning Board Member Requirements – Linda Miller, Interim 

Town Attorney  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” AND 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 90-15 “MEMBERSHIP/QUORUM, 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, OFFICERS, TERMS OF OFFICERS, 
VACANCIES, GENERAL REGULATIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS, 

Page 17



EXPENDITURES, INDEBTNESS” BY ADDING TWO VOTING EX-OFFICIO 
POSITIONS, AND CHANGING THE FLORIDA LICENSURE REQUIREMENTS 
FOR ARCHITECTS SERVING ON THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Item deferred. 
 

3. Hardpack Easement – Linda Miller, Interim Town Attorney  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 SECTION 90-60 
“CONSTRUCTION ADJACENT TO BULKHEAD LINES” SUBSECTION 
90-60.1 OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
REQUIRING NO PERMIT SHALL BE ISSUED FOR THE REPAIR, 
EXTENSION, ALTERATION OR REPLACEMENT OF ANY 
HABITABLE, FULLY-ENCLOSED STRUCTURE EAST OF THE OCEAN 
BULKHEAD LINE; NO PERMIT SHALL BE ISSUED FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY HABITABLE, FULLY ENCLOSED 
STRUCTURE CLOSER THAN 20 FEET TO THE WEST OF THE OCEAN 
BULKHEAD LINE; ALL PROPERTIES  EAST OF THE OCEAN 
BULKHEAD LINE WILL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE AN ACCESS 
EASEMENT TO THE TOWN GRANTING THE PERPETUAL USE OF 
THE HARDPACK TO THE PUBLIC; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item to the Town Commission.  There 
was some discussion and clarification of the ordinance.  Commissioner Graubart 
made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from Vice Mayor 
Karukin.  The motion carried 5-0. 
 

4. Trellises – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” 
SPECIFICALLY SECTION 90-19 “SINGLE-FAMILY AND TWO-
FAMILY DEVELOPMENT PROCESS” TO ADD “TRELLISES” 
LOCATED IN THE REAR OR INTERIOR SIDE YARD TO ITEMS NOT 
SUBJECT TO PLANNING & ZONING BOARD REVIEW; PROVIDING 
FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR 

Page 18



PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item to the Town Commission. 
She would like to clarify the text on the actual Ordinance under Section 90-19.7 
to read “in the rear or interior side yard.”  Commissioner Graubart asked if a 
permit had to be pulled and Building Official Rosendo Prieto indicated that any 
structural feature installed would need a permit.  Commissioner Graubart made a 
motion to accept.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman.  
The motion carried 5-0.  
 

5. Required Carport Standards – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING”, AND 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 90-58 “CARPORT CANOPIES” 
FOR CONSISTENCY WITH DRIVEWAY REGULATIONS AND 
CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to accept.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Kligman.  The motion carried 5-0. 
 

6. Metal Roofs – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” 
SPECIFICALLY SECTION 90-50 “ARCHITECTURE AND ROOF 
DECKS” TO EXCLUDE METAL ROOFS FROM PLANNING & ZONING 
BOARD REVIEW; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item to the Town Commission.   
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Graubart.  The motion carried 5-0. 

 
   5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 

(Set for approximately __9:30_ p.m.)  (Note: Depends upon length of Good and 
Welfare) 

Page 19



 
 

A. Second Amendment to American Traffic Solutions, Inc. Agreement – David 
Allen, Chief of Police  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE   TOWN TO ENTER INTO 
A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN 
AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, INC., AND THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “A” 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO 
DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF THE 
CONTRACT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Chief David Allen presented the item. 
Commissioner Graubar would like make an amendment to section 1 of the Terms 
and Conditions to read as follows: “ The convenience fee set forth in Section 18 
of Exhibit D, is hereby amended as follows: “ATS is authorized to charge, collect 
and retain a convenience fee up to the actual processing cost for each electronic 
payment processed.  Such fees are paid by the violator.” 

Commissioner Graubart made a motion to accept with the new language.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 

B. Reformed Mark Wandall Traffic Safety Act Code Enforcement 
Implementation – David Allen, Chief of Police  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”), DESIGNATING THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE’S CODE ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL MASTERS AND CODE 
COMPLIANCE OFFICER(S) TO SERVE AS LOCAL HEARING 
OFFICERS PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 2013-160, LAWS OF FLORIDA; 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN CLERK TO 
UTILIZE CODE ENFORCEMENT STAFF TO IMPLEMENT CHAPTER 
2013-160, LAWS OF FLORIDA; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Chief David Allen presented the item.  
Commissioner Graubart made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 
 

C. Proposed Ad-Valorem Budget Millage for Fiscal Year 2013/14 – Donald 
Nelson, Finance Director  

Page 20



A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, DETERMINING A PROPOSED OPERATING 
MILLAGE RATE, DETERMINING THE CURRENT YEAR ROLLED-
BACK RATE; ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE FOR 
THE FIRST AND SECOND PUBLIC BUDGET HEARINGS AS 
REQUIRED BY LAW; DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO FILE SAID 
RESOLUTION WITH THE PROPERTY APPRAISER OF MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA 
STATUTES AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FOR THE STATE OF FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Finance Director Donald Nelson presented the item to the Town Commission and 
recommended to set a cap at 5.3 Mills.   
Commissioner Graubart made a motion to accept.  The motion received a second 
from Vice Mayor Karukin.   
Commissioner Olchyk made a friendly amendment to set the cap at 5.0 Mills.   
The friendly amendment was not accepted by motion maker Commissioner 
Graubart. 
The motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition. 
 

D. Abbott and 94th Street Parking Lots – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF LYNX 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, LLC PROPOSAL FOR 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO CONTINUE DESIGN BUILD SERVICES 
FOR THE RENOVATION OF THE ABBOTT AVENUE AND 94TH 
STREET PARKING LOTS TO INCLUDE NECESSARY CONCRETE 
CUTS FOR AN ADDITIONAL COST NOT TO EXCEED $16,772.55; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.   
Town Manager Michael P. Crotty presented the item and asked the Town 
Commission to reconsider this item that was in front of them during the June 
Town Commission meeting.  Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to approve.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Graubart.  Motion carried 3-2 
with Commissioner Kligman and Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition. 
 

AND 

 

Page 21



 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
 SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING AN EXPENDITURE NOT TO 
 EXCEED $80,127.20 FOR THE ABBOTT AVENUE AND 94TH STREET 
 PARKING LOTS TO LUKES’ LANDSCAPING, INC. DBA LUKES-
 SAWGRASS LANDSCAPE FOR A PROPOSAL TO LANDSCAPE THE 
 ABBOTT AVENUE AND 94TH STREET PARKING LOTS; APPROVING 
 AND AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES FROM THE MUNICIPAL 
 PARKING FUND; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Manager Michael P. Crotty presented the item and asked the Town 
Commission to reconsider this item that was in front of them during the June 
Town Commission meeting.  There was some discussion regarding landscaping 
and the costs.  Vice Mayor Karukin, Commissioner Graubart and Commissioner 
Kligman voted in favor of reconsideration of the item. 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Graubart.  Motion carried 3-2 with Commissioner Kligman 
and Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition. 

     
      6.  Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.)   

Terry Cohen spoke about the situation that she continues to have with her two (2) 
neighbors.   
 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to move item 9D up in the agenda since it is 
related to Ms. Cohen.  Commissioner Graubart seconded the motion and all voted in 
favor. 
 
Town Manager Michael Crotty said he has been following up on the situation involving 
Ms. Cohen and has been advised by the Code Officer that there has been some progress 
made.   
 
Joe Damien Code Compliance Director reported on actions that have been taken 
regarding the properties in code violation and is continuing to monitor and pursue the 
violations on such properties. 
 
Code Enforcement Compliance Regarding Hedges and Site Triangle 
**Item added by Commissioner Kligman** 
 
Gisella Santiago spoke regarding the town code for hedges and indicated that she as well 
as many residents has never received any education regarding codes for such and was 
unaware that there was a violation until they were cited.   After some discussion 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion that the Town Staff contact those that are in 
compliance and give them the opportunity to be included in the July 26, 2013 Special 
Masters Hearing to request mitigation of their fines.  Commissioner Karukin seconded 
the motion.  Mayor Dietch who voted in favor wanted the town to be mindful of the cost 

Page 22



of Special Masters Hearings.  The motion carried with Commissioner Olchyk in 
opposition. 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
 Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may 
 request, during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from  
the consent agenda and discussed separately. 
 

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 
Presentations - Commissioner Olchyk  
** Item added by Commissioner** 
Commissioner Olchyk requested that presentations be limited to one per department per 
month.   Mayor Dietch suggested there may be options regarding presentations and that 
the item be deferred and placed on the next agenda for discussion.  Commissioner Olchyk 
was in agreement. 
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 

A.  Charter Review Committee Process – Vice Mayor Michael Karukin  
 Vice Mayor Karukin presented the item and asked the members of the Town 

Commission to appoint one resident to serve on the Charter Review Board. 
 Commissioner Olchyk appointed Lou Cohen 
 Vice Mayor Karukin appointed former Mayor Mark Imberman 
 Mayor Dietch appointed Marty Oppenheimer. 
 Commissioner Graubart and Commissioner Kligman will appoint someone at a later 

date.  
 
B. Construction Worker Parking Program – Commissioner Joe Graubart  

 After some discussion no motion was made. 
 

C.  Interim Town Attorney Evaluation – Commissioner Michelle Kligman  
 Commissioner Kligman presented the item.   Commissioner Kligman did not make a 

recommendation because all evaluations had not been received and suggested a 
discussion.  After some discussion and remarks by the Board, Commissioner Olchyk 
made a motion for a vote of confidence and Commissioner Kligman was appointed to 
negotiate a contract with the Labor Attorney for Linda Miller as Town Attorney.  The 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Karukin and all voted in favor. 

  
D.  Status of Code Compliance Efforts at 1268 and 1292 Biscaya Drive – Joe Damian, 

Code Compliance Director  
 **Item discussed after Good and Welfare 
 Town Manager Michael P. Crotty presented the item to the Town Commission. 
 Code Enforcement Joe Damian spoke on the item as well. 

Page 23



 
E.  Communication Re: Undergrounding – Commissioner Joe Graubart  
 Commissioner Graubart submitted the Commission Communication as informational and 

would like for everyone to read it. 
 Town Manager Michael P. Crotty passed an email received from former Town Manager 

Roger M. Carlton in response to Commissioner Graubart’s Communication regarding the 
independent analysis of the cost estimate and discussions he had with Town Manager 
Crotty during the interim period.   

  
F.  Resilient Communities for America Agreement – Mayor Daniel Dietch  

 Mayor Dietch presented the item to the Town Commission and encouraged them to sign 
up for the resilient Communities for America Agreement. 

   
      10. Adjournment  

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned 
at 12:21 a.m.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2013 

 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 24



Page 25

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3B



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3C



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3D



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE 

PROJECTS PROGRESS REPORT 

CALVIN, GIORDANO & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

August, 2013 
 

1. Planning and Community Development – Planning and Community Development – In 

August 2012, the Shul submitted a site plan application for an expansion. Staff met with the 

applicant to discuss the review comments and the applicant resubmitted the plans on January 

25, 2013.  Staff held Development Review Group meetings on February 13, 2013, March 28, 

2013 and July 18, 2013. Once all of the outstanding comments are addressed, a Development 

Impact Committee meeting will be scheduled, which is anticipated in September. The 

Planning and Zoning Board has recently directed staff to prepare numerous ordinances to the 

zoning code, including code changes to trellises and carports. These items will be hears by 

the Town Commission at the August 13, 2013 meeting on second reading. Also, the Planning 

department has assisted in the preparation of a hardpack easement ordinance. This ordinance 

will require properties east of Collins Avenue, as they submit development permits, to grant 

an easement to the Town for the sand road known as the hardpack for the perpetual use of the 

public. Planning Staff has also prepared a spreadsheet for each development project to 

continually track the conditions of approval. This spreadsheet identifies the department 

responsible for the item and confirmation of completion. Staff continues to answer 

approximately 80 zoning questions monthly and reviews permit applications.   

 

2. Information Technology & TV Broadcasts - The mail server has been up and running 

without interruption for 379 days.  The last downtime was for routine maintenance and 

occurred on July 11, 2012.  IT is working with Municode and SunGard on setting up utility 

billing online, which is now live on the website. IT has configured the Data Transfer portion 

for the Finance Department. IT is awaiting delivery for upgrades to the chamber room 

broadcasting equipment including wireless microphones. Triad Security has installed panic 

buttons in the chamber room to alert dispatch of emergency situations. IT has provided 

quotes for surveillance cameras for the Police Department to place around the town.  Triad 

Security installed two new video cameras at the Community Center, per the Chief’s request. 

IT is working with the police department on a software demo for vehicle license plate 

reading. IT is coordinating with SunGard to order a replacement check printer. The IT staff 

continues to receive approximately 300 support requests monthly via phone and email.  

 

3. Public Utilities / Engineering – The Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project commenced on 

August 15, 2011 in the southern sector of the Town (Phase I). The project involves water 

main/water service replacements, lining or replacement of the gravity sewer mains and sewer 

lateral replacements, rehabilitation of the sewer pump stations, and improvements to the 

stormwater collection system including three (3) new storm drainage pump stations.  Phase I-

III are now all substantially complete.  All of the sewer mains have been lined and the TV 

crews have now completed the post construction video which is being reviewed for approval 

Page 65

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3E



Page 2 

Town of Surfside 
Projects Progress Report 

 

by Town Staff and CGA Engineers.  The final lift of asphalt installation commenced 

February 25, 2013.  The paving subcontractor began in the south end of Town and has 

completed all available areas (Town is working with FDOT for the required restoration on 

FDOT roadways).  The permanent pavement marking and stripping is occurring as the 

asphalt has set a minimum of 21 days.  The Contractor has completed all punch list items 

within private property and is now finalizing the pump station and roadway punch list.  

Sanitary pump stations are substantially complete and off of the bypass pumps.  The 

electricians have finalized the automated controls on the sanitary pump stations and have 

requested a startup/inspection.  The drainage pump stations have passed all electrical 

inspections and FPL has provided power.  The Contractor has substantially completed all 

work on the drainage pump stations and passed structural and electrical inspection.  The 

close-out of all pump stations will include completing punch list items, full training of Town 

staff on operation and maintenance (O&M) and the contractor will provide O&M manuals.  

A project close out meeting was held on July 8, 2013 at 7:00pm. 

 

Both Surfside and the Village of Bal Harbour are currently utilizing the newly installed 

Collins Avenue force main with no operational issues. CGA continues to assist the Town 

manager in negotiating with Bal Harbour a resolution of the design costs for the force main 

or arbitrations will begin.  

 

Partial refinancing of the project has been completed to reduce the interest costs and provide 

funding for additional utility main replacements, and other costs within the original scope.  A 

comprehensive status report for the project was provided in the August 14, 2012 Commission 

Agenda package and authority was granted to complete the project within a total budget of 

$23.635 Million.  Retainage will continue to be held and will only be released after all work 

is completed including the punch list.   

 

Funding Summary –                                                                                            

Funding Status:                                   Amount                   Amount Received             

FDEP Grant                                                 $873,500                              $0      **      

FDEP Grant                                                 $125,000                              $12,500 ** 

FDEP Grant                                                 $100,000                              $100,000               

FDEP State Revolving Fund Loan*    $9,312,881                          $4,792,023 ***           

BBC Bond                                                   $859,000                              $787,335               

TOTAL                                                       $11,270,381                         $5,691,858 

*This loan has the potential of $2-$3 Million being forgiven by the State.   

*Partial Reimbursement #2 is in process for $3.188MM bringing total requested to       

$7.896MM 

**Reimbursements currently being processed by FDEP 

Page 66



Page 3 

Town of Surfside 
Projects Progress Report 

 

***The State of Florida has reduced the interest rate from 2.12% to 1.87% fixed over 

the life of the loan.  This will save approximately $200,000 of interest cost 

 

4. Neighborhood Improvements – CGA Staff completed the traffic computer modeling of the 

Town’s roadway system as an element of the Town-wide traffic calming study.  The initial 

traffic counts to complete the traffic study occurred in September, 2012.  A number of the 

counts were finalized in late October due to construction activities.  These counts are 

incorporated in the Draft Traffic Study Report that was discussed at the April 9, 2013 

meeting.  As authorized by the Town Commission, staff held public meetings on June 25, 

2013 with an attendance of 10 residents.  CGA will work with the Town Manager to 

schedule the second public meeting. 

 

5. Emergency Management - CGA finalized all revisions to the Town’s Emergency 

Operations Plan (EOP) and submitted it on Friday, March 29, 2013.  Onsite training occurred 

on Friday May 3, 2013.  This project is completed. 

 

6. Emergency Seawall Repair at 88
th

 & Carlyle - Miami Dade County RER (Formerly 

DERM) has completed the Biological Opinion (BO).  The results of the BO were submitted 

to the Town and CGA has incorporated the BO permit requirements into our final plans.  The 

final plans have been submitted for final permits.  The US Army Corps of Engineers 

(USACE) permit was obtained in late February 2013 and the FDEP permit was obtained in 

April 2013.  The South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) and Miami Dade 

County RER permits are ready to be issued but were waiting on final structural approval 

from the Town, which was received June 27, 2013.  The SFWMD and RER final permits are 

expected to be completed in early August 2013. 

 

7. Town-Owned Seawall Repair - The 90% plans were submitted to the Florida Inland 

Navigation District (FIND) Commissioner Spencer Crowley, III, who represents Miami Dade 

County on the FIND Board.  The project received a favorable response from the 

Commissioner and we submitted our project for funding.  CGA presented the project to 

FIND on June 21, 2013.  FIND has published the rankings and the presentation was awarded 

41.09 points (required 35 to obtain funding).  If the board accepts the staff recommendation, 

funding for the seawalls will be available October 1, 2013.   The environmental survey for 

benthic resources was performed in May 2013, the plans have been finalized to reflect the 

findings.  Simultaneously, while we are applying for the FIND funding we have been 

working on obtaining the required USACE, FDEP, Town and Miami Dade County RER 

permits.  These permits will be obtained by September 2013. 

 

Page 67



Page 68

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3F



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



 
 
 

 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
MINUTES     

JUNE 27, 2013 
7:00 PM 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Lecour called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 
 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  Board 
Member Jennifer Dray, Board Member Carli Koshal, Board Member Armando Castellanos, 
Vice Chair Peter Glynn and Chair Lindsay Lecour.  Vice Mayor Michael Karukin attended 
as the Board liaison. 
 

 
3.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: JANUARY 31, 2013 (DEFERRED) 

  MAY 30, 2013 (ATTACHED) 
 

Board Member Dray made a motion to approve with more details to the summary minutes 
that she will send via email.  The motion received a second from Board Member Castellanos 
and all voted in favor. 

 
4.   PLANNING AND ZONING APPLICATIONS: 

 
A. Request of the Owner of Property located at 9281 Carlyle Avenue 
The applicant is requesting to replace her roof with a metal roof. 
Town Planner Sara Sinatra presented the item.  There was some discussion regarding the 
colors for metal roof.  Board Member Castellanos made a motion to approve.  The motion 
received a second from Vice Chair Glynn and all voted in favor.   
 
Board Member Lecour indicated that there have been several requests for replacement to 
metal roofs.  Board Member Koshal suggested that a revision to the Ordinance be written 
that metal roofs will not require Board review.  Town Planner Sarah Sinatra will put this as a 
future agenda item.   

 
B. Request of the Owner of Property located at 1452 Biscaya Drive 
The applicant is requesting to replace their roof with a metal roof. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item. 

Page 72



Board Member Dray made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from Vice 
Chair Glynn and all voted in favor. 
 

 
C. Request of the Owner of Property located at 700 95 Street 
The applicant is requesting to build a trellis in their backyard. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item.  Board Member Lecour asked where the 
trellis was to be installed and the type of wood being used.  Town Planner Sinatra indicated 
the trellis would be between the house and pool and the material for the trellis would be 
submitted when the building permit is pulled. 
 
Vice Chair Peter Glynn made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from 
Board Member Koshal and all voted in favor. 

 
 
D. Request of the Owner of Property located at 9473 Bay Drive 
The applicant is requesting to build a trellis in their backyard. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item. 
Board Member Dray questioned why the photos submitted only showed the side of the 
house when the trellis is to be installed at the rear.  Town Planner Sinatra indicated she 
would request more photos of the house if the Board needed them for review.   No further 
review was necessary. 
 
Board Member Koshal made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from            
Board Member Dray and all voted in favor.  

 
 

E. Request of the Owner of Property located at 1025 88 Street 
The applicant is requesting to build a carport at their single family home. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item.   As submitted the design does not meet the 
zoning code.  Board Member Dray said it was a beautiful corner house with a beautiful 
driveway and these drives need the appropriate size awnings.  The style and color of the 
awning was also discussed.  Board Member Lecour in favor of double wide awning but 
suggested a darker color awning as white would draw too much attention to the canopy.    
Ted Lintle from Miami Awning presented details of the design and indicated the color white 
matched the house.  Mr. Lintle said he would suggest color options with the owner, perhaps 
terracotta to match the roof.   
 
Board member Koshal made a motion to approve contingent upon: 
 

1.  Town Commission approving a code modification to permit 20 foot carport canopies. 
 
2.  Town Commission does not approve the code modification to permit 20 foot wide 
carport canopies then a reduction in the width of the canopy to 10 feet per code section 
90.58(1). 

    
The motion received a second from Board Member Glynn and all voted in favor. 

 
F. Request of the Owner of Property located at 9300 Bay Drive 
The applicant is requesting to remodel the façade of their single family home. 

Page 73



Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item.  Mr. Kenneth E. Hubbs represented the 
applicant and presented some samples of the revised design.  Board Member Dray was 
pleased with the revisions and reverse color made a difference.  The landscaping should be 
part of the design especially removal of the dead bushes on side of the house.  Board 
Member Lecour questioned the white banding around the house and suggested a darker 
color as white tends to dirty faster.   The Board was happy that their suggestions were taken 
under consideration and with the revised design.  Board Member Koshal said approval 
should be contingent upon detailed landscaping and details of materials for porch. 
 
Board Member Castellanos made a motion to approve with recommendations: 
 

1.  Provide landscaping along south side of the home.  Details should be provided on 
plans submitted for permitting. 

2. The plans indicate stucco will be utilized for the porch to match the home.  Provide 
greater detail on the building permit package of the proposed materials for the porch. 

 
 The motion received a second from Board Member Dray and all voted in favor. 

  
G. Request of the Owner of Property located at 9116 Byron Avenue 
The applicant is requesting to install a sliding gate at the front entrance of their 
single family home. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item and recommended denial due to the possible 
obstruction of traffic flow on Byron Avenue when gate was to be opened and modification 
to the length of driveway would not be in compliance with zoning code which provides for a 
two off street parking space.   
Applicant was represented by Edward Averbach who gave more details about the location 
and installation of the gate and indicated reason for the request was regarding safety for the 
children and not security.   Board Member Dray indicated her concerns about a very lovely 
small house having two gates, possible obstruction of traffic flow on a busy street and 
setting a tone of a gated community.  The Board suggested that the applicant look into 
alternative safety measures for the children such as play gates.  Board Member Dray made a 
motion to deny.  The motion received a second from Board Member Castellanos and all 
voted in favor of denial. 
  
H. Request of the Owner of Property located at 9535, 9538 and 9540 Harding 
Avenue 
The applicant is requesting to remodel the building façade. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item and said the recommendations made by the 
Board at the May 30, 2013 meeting had been met with the exception of the underground 
utilities and color green facade.   Applicant addressed the issue of the color green and said it 
would blend in with the green color of other retailers.  Board Member Dray agreed and was 
not opposed to the color or design.  Board Member Koshal suggested the green color issue 
be removed from part of the approval condition.  
 
Commissioner Graubart spoke about the budget increase related to undergrounding utilities 
and stated that the Town will not be moving forward with this project at the moment. 
 
Board Member Castellanos made a motion to approve with condition to  
 

1.  Underground the utilities in the alley.   

Page 74



 
The motion received a second from Board Member Dray and all voted in favor. 
 
Commissioner Graubart expressed his concerns about the green alleys being given away and 
questioned who is responsible for the upkeep.   This item will be brought up in the future. 

 
 
 
 

5.     DISCUSSION ITEMS:   

 A.   SHEDS AND TRELLISES 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra indicated that each month there are several 
requests for trellises.  If they meet code requirements and the trellis is in rear 
or side of property and not visible from street, can the item be exempt from 
planning and building code review.   The Board was in favor of adding rear or 
side trellises to the list of exemptions.  Town Planner Sarah Sinatra will work 
together with the Legal Department and item will be presented to the Town 
Commission as an ordinance. 
Board Member Peter Glynn had reservations regarding the exemption of sheds 
as there are many different types and sizes which can be purchased and some 
may not be pleasing to a neighbors view.  After some discussion Board 
Member Lecour agreed that this issue needed further review.  Town Planner 
Sarah Sinatra will work with the Building Dept. and do some additional 
research on sheds.   

 B.   CARPORTS 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra will come up with an Ordinance for carports 
which will be reviewed at the next meeting.  

 C.   SIGNS 
The Commission is not moving forward with sign modifications for 
downtown at this time.  Vice Mayor Karukin stated that during the last 
Commission Meeting there was a debate as to whether doing this work fell 
under the CGA contract and not be an additional service.  The CGA contract 
will be reviewed and reported back to planning and board commission. 
Town Manager Michael P. Crotty indicated that staff  have been trying to 
schedule a workshop on signs and awnings with the Planning and Zoning 
Board, but have not been able to come up with a date as of yet.    
 
Commissioner Joe Graubart presented the sign codes of neighboring towns 
which include signs and awnings and distributed the materials as they may be 
helpful in the forthcoming workshop. 
 
 

6.    FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
 A.  Code change to require easement dedication for the hard pack 
 
 B.  Capital Improvement Element update 

Page 75



 
 C.  Solar Panels 
 
 D.  Dimensions of parking spaces 
  
 E.  Veterinary Clinics 

 
 F.  Satellite Dish 
 
7.  WORKSHOP ITEMS: 

 
 A.  Signs/Awnings  
 
 B. Continuous wall frontage 
 
 C. Pyramiding effects of setbacks 
 
 D. Side setbacks as a percentage of lot frontage 
 
8.   REPORT OF PERMITS ISSUED/REVENUE REPORT FOR MAY 2013.  
  

 
9.  ADJOURNMENT. 
 
 

There being no further business to come before the Planning and Zoning Board, the meeting 
adjourned at 8:30 p.m.   
 
 
 
Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2013 

 

   
 
       ________________________ 
       Chair Lindsay Lecour 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa 
Town Clerk 

Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3G



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3H



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3I



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A1



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A2



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A3



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A4



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A5



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



 

 

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

August 13, 2013 
 7 p.m.  

 

 

TOWN COMMISSION MEETING DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 

Subject:    “Awards, Presentations and Recognition Meetings” 

Background:  The Town has traditionally recognized employees for various reasons; such as 
longevity, outstanding service and/or performance by presenting those with awards (plaques), 
certifications or proclamations.  The Town does similarly when recognizing residents, students, 
citizens and organizations that deserve such distinction. 

It has come to the attention of the Commission that these ‘ceremonial presentations’ tend to 
consume a large portion of time; and therefore extend meetings far too long into the night –  
with many meetings ending very close to midnight. The current situation also puts or pushes 
important ‘Agenda Items’ to a late hour where they may not get the necessary vetting.  

Recommendation: One month following each yearly quarter, the Town Commission Meeting 
will start at 6:00 PM for these presentations; followed by the Regular Commission Meeting at 
7:00 PM as usual.  Therefore, special care must be given to scheduling conflicts that may arise, 
such as: shade or negotiation meetings.     

Additional Information: (1) Example: Quarter ending January, February, March – 
presentations made at the April meeting.  (2) Adopting this will allow for family photos, etc. 

Approximate Cost: Minimal, same as current; but needs to be ascertained. 

 

Respectfully,   

Joe Graubart, Commissioner 

 

Page 155

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9A



Page 156

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9B



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163


	2A - Variance 8859 Carlyle Avenue
	3A - Minutes
	3B - Budget to Actual
	3C - POL
	3D - Town Attorney Report
	3E - Projects Progress Report
	3F - Committee Reports
	3G - Appointment of Special Masters
	3H - Sidewalk Ordinance Resolution
	3I - Reformation of Current Student Loan System
	4A1 - DROP
	4A2 - Hardpack Easement
	4A3 - Trellises
	4A4 - Required Carport Standards
	4A5 - Metal Roofs
	9A - Awards, Presentations and Recognition Meeting
	9B - Veterninary Clinics



